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EDITORIAL

We are pleased to bo able to place befors you this Bath’ edition of Avon Past, the
content ol which exomplifies cor Lntarest in locs] history throughout the County
of Avon, It 35 therefore opportune to extend n welcome to the History of Bath
Resesreh Grong’, detalls of which are contained within this teiue’s "Socsety
Profile’ on page 40. We would nlso like to welcome those other groups that have
joined @ wince the publication of Avan Past No,121n the last year two vitally
important issues have been in the forefront of loonl historical and archaealogicnt
interest. The first Involves the despernte need for u County Record Office. Both
AAC and ALHA have debatod ths question, sad have singly and twgether
applied consistent pressure to to the locnd authari bes to try ond gnin acceplance
for this concept, and the Idea ssems 0 be taking reot It may bo that finunce s
the oaly remaining substantial barrier to thisbeing realised, but it inimperative
Lhint pressesire ks Kopt up, in order to provide o mevice that Avan is in frentie noed
of, and = time goss 06, will foed the want of more snd maore. ,

The other isaue is the welcome growth in the number of amall, local
museams that have fought their way inte being, Thornbury and Keynshom
wering obvicusly tomind, There in nnoed for foonl muscume ofall typesand sizes,
houping ecammund tes in toach with thedy roots und fillling the gap that con nevey
e fully taken up by the dty-based mstitutions. We wish all museum projects
wiell, und look forward toprinting details of their openingsin the fullness of time,

To thees af our readers who teok up the clarion call and protestod aboat the
EEC plans tointroduce o tax on books, snd Lo thoas who watehod the preceedinggs
with boted bevath, you will all po doubt have cbarrved with cries of delight that
this item hass beent (permonuntly, we hope) refected!

Finally, keep your eyes ard the eyes of your suciety on developments ot
Ashiton Court and Castie Green, Hestel. Both projects will, I fancy, bald the
attention of AAC and ALHA Members for quite s while.

Jonnifer Scherr, Pip Jones & Julian Lea-Jones
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AN EIGHTEENTH-CENTURY RIDING SCHOOL
AND TENNIS COURT AT BATH
by Trever Fawcett

Arcund 1760 the arts of mandge, or stylish riding, became more Gishleanble at
Bath, epodally for women. As exercise nnd pastime, riding bad of eourse loeg
beon: n local attraction to=pa visiters, male and femnle alike. Recommended by
the modieal fiaculty it also gave ample opportunities for vell-display. Handsome
mounts, expensive trappings, and modiah rding cetume might impress the
company even more than horsemanship. The keener equestrinns rede out on the
hills surrounding Bath, which, though restricted in places by enclosure, were
inerensingly approachable thanks to turngpiking and the construction of Ralph
Alleny's drive up to Combe Down. Less ambitious riders made shorler excursions
wlng the London and Bristol highways, or headod for the town commen where
i ring hiad Bean Taid out by c.1700 in modest imitatson of the one at Hyde Park.

Although horses wore s indinparaabl to sighteenthcontury ecanomic and
wocinl life, the science of equestricnizm had made slow progress in Britain.
According to oo cemementatar in 1762 few people rode well becanise nguirt from
army officers and others of runks few felt the newl” . Systomatic professicnnl
inetroction was in any case not widely available. William [1'% riding scademy,
the first in the country, wis 3 very belated foundation and had not been musch
imitatod,

Nevertheless, n quickening [ntorwat tn riding as an art can be detected from
the mid-cighteenth century with the appearance of varlous manunls of horse-
masehilp, starting with the reissue of the Duke of Newcsstlo's old treatise on the
subjoct, continuing with works by Richard Boreager (scon to be nppainted the
yuyal riding master), the Eorl of Pembroke, Charles Thompson, Philip Astley
andaothers, and culminuting 1o Goallrey Cambada’s handsome yolumes towards
the turn of the century, Such publications, besides dealing with the training and
cantrol of herses and the utiliturion side of iding, nles emphasised the graces;
their descriptions of fancy steps and sophisticated manoeuvres had annlogies in
the instraction books of dancing mnsters. It may well have been oo of these
authors, the 10eh Earl of Pembroke, Eord Licutenant of Wiltshire, who waa
bohind the promotion of o riding school at Bath in the late 1760%, arcand the
time thod o similar initistive was taken at Bristel, During o career in which be
T suscessively commanded dragoons, light horse, and a brignde of cavalry,
Pembeoke bad cama to be regarded as an authority on equestrinnism. Purthor-
monh: had the practical expecience of his own priviate riding estoblishment at
Wiltem™!,

The frechold plot of land on which the Buth riding sehool would be built was
canveyed by John Marford and family, owners of various pieces of ground in the
vieinity, to the riding master Cagtain Charlea Poitier and Jeanthan Boker in
March L 768 atan annual rent of same £43%. Chocsing a still isolated open-fielda
stean the lane marking the eity’s otterm et Himit (close to the turnpike steeply
ascending Lansdown) must have been deliberate. Already the Roval Crescent
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hid wtarved construction at the western end of a nearly completed Brock Street.
Thoss backing the riding school scheme no doubt fueased, or had foreknowledge,
that the recent haiy tothe manor of Waloot, Siv Peter Rivers, intendad realising
the potential of his Barton eatate guite ns vigorously ox his predecrasors, Rebert
Gay #nd the Garmards, had dooe. And they would be aware, moreover, that o
high-powered commities was currently considering plane for s auite of assembly
roatra In the expunding upper town on & strip of frechold land that ren uphill
directly to the intended riding school and was eminently fipe for developmint
In the eveat, five or six years from the leunch of the school, RiversStreet, Rusaell
Street and Marford Street had nll been buflt and cccupled, and it now appeared
fr from isolatad,

Loty and norrow (13258, x 316,) the new stoes budlding met the necess road,
now namod Montpedier, snd o An opening in 185 nocth-west corner communi-
rated with a much smaller stables block which later became rather hemmed in
by huuees fram both Montpelier and Morford Street. After some years & separato
open aiy proctising ares woold be provided to the sast of the building, bat
otherwise the Hding scheol was under cover. The livery stables — sdvirtised as
potably superior to the polluted ‘dungeons’ that horses in Bath often had to put
up with"! — muat have boen soen os a necessary finanelal prap ta an uncertain
venture. By the end of 1 768, after only a few months of operation, the experiment
of weekly horse auctions con be interpreted as an attempt to generate more
business and income™. Por the enterprise had got off to & slow etart,

The Jatent demand froean women riders hinted nt same years before in the
Jocod pross {now it is o scionce made/ OF teaching Ladins how 1o ride’s™ had
besn borno cut, but men had faled to enrdl with the same enthusiosm. By
Novembwr 1769 a carrospondent to the Bath Chronicle was sxpreasing surpriss
that male riders ssemad 16 be shunning the place, given that they would noquirs
there what most of them conspicuwonsly lacked, ‘that easy je ne sais quol in their
adr, which we abwerve in most Poreigners’. In fact the ‘perfect ignorsnce of
Iovsomanship in owr sex’ must be cansidired a disgrace when the remedy wis
ot hand in & welleguipped riding school run by & mastsr ‘who, to 4 great
knowlodge of the svience, adds an obliging dispesition very different from the
disguating Aawtersr [ have known some masters affect’. Eviryone might net
attain the standards of Lord Pumbroke, George Pitt, or Sir Sidney Medown, but
they mould still aspire to manly grace!™,

The citing of these exemplars of fine harsemanship, as well as indicating
thunt thelr skills were known and admired at Bath, rojses the possibility that all
of them were concerned In the riding school. Pumbroke, who later on supported
the project for a royal tennis court on the site, has alrendy been mentioned as o
likely spansor, theaph fairly soom after the riding establishment opened he
deportad on the Grand Tour. Geargs PitL, the futare Baron Rivers, hod however
now returned from his ministerial posting to Turin snd resumed his Joca!
prominence as MP for Dorset and colonel of the ecunty militia. And the Knight
Marshal, Sir Sidney Madows, must also have been a familiar figure in Bath
wharw hia brotherin daw, the 2ad Duke of Kingston, held oxtensive property.
Cerainly high-ranking and informed patronage of just this sortcan be assumed,
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Frederick & Teylor's Plax of Bodh (17721 shows the riding naturalistically
a3 & squars plod oy Monipellier o', Alreiely mos strvets are heing mod or planacd
in the imvacliote sicinity,

o ...". t'rﬁz';a :
Seves yeory dader the sesdy built sannis court
Mae avd the local dewispmant bos bees

evun if the precise names remain guesswork, The wnly dufinite porticipants
though nt this early stage of the riding acheod’s liatory nre its two owners,
particulorly Captadn Puitier the riding mnuter] bat ho - perbnps disillusionsd by
the apathetic reeponse - remained for lens than three yonrs before selling out to

Richord Scrace, o stable-keeper from Loodon™,

Scroce immediately began a publiciy % The nding sehoal, be
urmounced, stosd in a dry, healthy positicn havely five minutos’ walk fram any
part of town (an optimistic estimate). As undor Paitier, inatraction would be
availuble fr men and women an nMernate murpings. He bad livery stabling for
almoet sixty horses though probably fawar ifcxrviages had to be housed as well),
Ho could train unbroken animals, Although he never spelled itout, he obviously
taught basic riding skills like mounting, correct sising, control, the use of adds,
and the diffaront paces, butit cannct be assumed ho provided ndvanced dressage
and schooling in the complicated movements and sirs ol Cuntinental praetico.
Advertisingin 1772 he indead refurred 1o manage, yobsqusally to the hiring out,
hreaking, docking and cropping of horses, and to the valubng amil auctioning of
tive- and doadstoek, waggrems and carts, hay and carn™ ¥, This saggosts lesx
maatar of haute école equitation than a straightfoeward, no-nonsense riding
instructor with an acote eye for all the sdeling eppartunities. In the face of
strong exemnpetition freen other stoble- and “howso-koepars in the city and
neighbourhood he enjoyed the advantage of an all-woather riding hnll which the
owners of stabled horses could ure gratis outside nurmal teacking bours. The
charges for riding and instruction were otharwise thres gulneus s month or fa.
34d. a lessan, S

Aa the residential and seasonal population of Rath’s upper town rapidly
increased, the riding schoal muat have bacome profitable encagh tor further
development toboenntemplated. In 1 774 Scrace ndded an open out-ride, 150 feet
In circumference, on ground to the east of the main building which he probably
took on short Jease from Rivers Guy'). Still mare ambitioualy, in 1777 be
purchased on mortgnge, with the help of his son Edward, & Bath hatter and
hoberdnaber, and Daniel Ryley, o tuker, nnother plot of land adjacent on the
north for the parpose of building a tennis court. Under the teems of his loan of
EBO0 from the mortgagoes, the well-known local huilder and carpenter Hiehard
Hewhatt, Scriico wis o erect a court it far play of the Game of Tennis’, with n
dressting room, hy 28 July 1777 and also to budld two houses on the site within
five ynars''®,

Hoyal tennis was no novelty in Bath. During the game's Tudoe heyday it had
becn played on at beast two conrts {one just within the south gate by St. Jame's
elureh, the other immediately enst of the King’s Bath) aned waa popular enough
for William Tarner to complain in 1562 that more monay was laid ot on
pastimen like tennss than on the mor necessary improvements to the bathing
factlities" Y. A genweration lnter, howerer, o reference to ‘one wood barton called
Tenyseplay*'Y suggests that the former court fiad fallen into disuse and becoms
a timber yard, The other court, a substantinl building, ramesined in existence
woll into the eighteenth century, thaagh probably net serving its ariginal
function bayond the syventeenth. Indeed in 1657 the quaker William Fenn,
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visiting Bath, found 1t made a converiient preaching hall**. By that. dats tennis
proper may have been lost to the aty, though Gilmore's map of 1694 shows that
2 fivesa court now stood outaide the west pate.

Soveral schumes for reviving the game were mooted In the elghteanth
century. A tennls ecurt foatarod in the elder John Wood's never realived project
for an imperial gymnosium, o kindof sporacentreatnnt b lettre; and oo his mop
of 1735 apears a building nesr the angle of the newdy Joid out Gay Street and
Cuorge Stroet lubelled ‘Fives Court’ but by its deacription mece likely to have
been far temmis: ‘an Elegant rooen of 100 feet Jorg, 40 feet wide, and 40 faot high’.
This coutd woll be tho tonnis court that Ralph Allen's clerk of works, Richard
Junes, subsoquesntly claimed that be conatructed™ ©, Ita Hutory remadns ohocure
hewever and ita life sony have been shrt, for it vanishes from local street plans
bofore the mid-century.

A fresh inltintive was saken in 1775 when the press announced thit sundry
peblemen and gontlomen of the turf were progesing to baild a complex of tennis
court, fivos court, and keeper's house, between St Jamws's Parade und the
Borcugh Walls, and honeo close to the Criss and Hot baths with their amenities
for washing after cxercise. The plan envisaged o hundrod subseribers, each
starting with o 20-guinea tontine shar' ™. Nothing is kntnwn nbout the projec-
s of this scheme, but outof it came two rival concopts, both publictsod in Moy
1776 & tonres court nleoe, desigoed by an eminent (but unnamad) archisoct to
be pat up by Richard Serace near his riding schoal; or alternatively, o tennis
cotgt eombined with billined and coffee rooma which the house puinter arud
colourman, Charles Davis, intended for the north end of Westgnte Buildings™®,
Partly perhaps because Scrace’s plans were more advanced, partly bocose low
mooey would how to bo raised, it was his scheme that attrocted influential
buckers, foremost amoog them the Borl of Punsbroke. Cruttwell's New Bath
Guide of 1753 goes so far 38 to atate that Scrace planned hiz court, based oo
Purisian precedints, in canjunction with the Rarl. There can be no doubt that
Pumbroke took one ar mere ahares in ane or another of tha subseriptions sinee
he says ne much In & lottor to his wan, then visiting Bath, o few years Inter in
1780: “To whom does the Tennis Court belong now? J'y suis intéresed, boing o £60
subscribur. Is the Marker o toberable player, snd bow are the rocquots, and balla,
[

Noexpert in building tennis eourts, Scroce badly underestimated the costs
Tikely to be invalved, The initial subscription, to jadge from his later statement
of finanms, cancot bave ximed st rassng more than £1,000,and in the event may
have amounted to only £700P% Neverthsleas, betwoen autumn 1776 and
ammer 1 777, the ambiticos pew building (1166, x 51t including the passage-
way and changing roomsi went up on the ground behind the riding school and
atright angles toit. Nowndays hoasing the Bath Industrial Heritage Comtre, it
impressive dimansions can still be appreciated.

The zourt cpened for play in Septomber 1777 under the direction of one
Hulet, doubtless o professional from the Freoch jew de pawme establishment®.
Prance had continued to be the stronghold of royal tenads even in its relative
decline, the preatige of this subtle snd Intellectual sport being sach that De




Garsoult's trestiss on the subject in 1 767 came out under the susplees of the
Acaddrmie des Sciences, In Bath it revival began promisingly, though contem-
porary references to the court are sparse and we have no description of its
interiar or to the play - except that London rules ware followed. One early
performer there, in the winter of 1 777-8, made uee of the riding schoal as well,
1n & bettor to George Selwyn, his follow palitician und sodalite, Anthooy Morris
Starer remarks: ‘] play at whist from morning 8Ll night; take the dust in the
muxrubund play at tennis when there 15 no spow to prevent me [resching the
cotrs

Meanwhile Scrace had landed in financal trouble, His £800 martgage koan
{now owed not to the builder Howlett but toa Bath bank) was due for repayment.
Having handed over responsibility for the riding echool to his son, Richard
Serac junsar, he set about arganising another subseription in which he pro-
pesed to issuw forty shares of £20, cach earning 5% hall-yearly interest,
receemnble by himself after thres years®?. In the ensuing months of uncer-
tainty thixoffer was withdrown, an auction of the premises annocunced and then
peatponed, a fresh subseription tried, and finally another sale advertisd™ By
autirmn 1780 the tennis court was in the hands of Arthur Molesworth and his
daughter Eliznbeth of Armagh and Dublin; Halet hund already loft and the
vacancy which the Earl of Pembeoke had been coneurnad abont filled temporar-
ily by s markey from the famnues James Strect court in London, a man named
Muckiow*®. A year or 5 later & move permanent appointment was imade, wnd
this player, Hathway, enntinued for the next ninateen years, in which time he
was said to have accumulated & feetune®™®,

Although he had now shed the burden of the tennss court {and despite the
successof hisnetross daughtar an the Bath ond Londen stages), Serace found his
sffnirs still failing to peosper. Whan in 1734 Parliament imposed dutins of twa
guiness a ywar on saddle, conch, and race horsea (ineressed farther in L 789), plus
26 0 yoor on horse dealers outside London, it may have been the luat straw in
indiscing him to seil the riding house with its etables and outrides. Ironically the
new purchaser wik his furmor usher, assistant and rough-rider, Jannthan Dash,
whe had set up s a riding instructoe ot s own account in 1778 during the time
of Serovce’s finuneind eriats®", At thot time Daeh had suggeatod he was respond.
ingtocamplnints from would-be riders who were unable to mannge their mounts
on the public highways ‘notwithstanding they have beon tasght ut n Biding
Schoo?’ - n dig perbups at Scrasce’s methods. During hie six yeors of walf-
employment based on the Raven stablos ho hadd prabably made useful contocts
{n the mcing community which would now stand him in guod stead a8 the Bath
racecourse, farmerly lnid out with & stand, eoach houses and stabling on
Claverzon Down, crassed the river to a new site on Lansdown. By 1786 the riding
sehool was also being used for rce stud purposes™™.

With Daosh's takeover the alder Scrace, now npproaching 70, was rediced to
a stable-hand, and vemuined 50 unitil he anncunced bis vetivement in 1759, not
bekng sibde to do the business yequired of a servant... not able W bear the fatigue
in this labarious basiness’, Bat, be addod, ' My, Dash and [ part friendiy, and he
indulges me with the wse of the bouse [live in, rent frve, 50 long #s me and my

1w

wife live™™ His sors Bdward, the haberdaaber, had dled in 1787; his wife died
in 1790 aftor 47 yenrs of marvinge.

The 17807 were punctoated by varions initintives oo Dash's part. There
were now seversd outrides to the school which he allowed @ be used for
exerciging horses befoes 10.00nm or after 3.00pm. Between these hours he gave
Jessons, charging three guineas for sixtoen. He increased the number of drusmd
mownts, Late in 1 785 ke startod hoess sales, hut the speanlist nuctioneer whom
i emgloyed on comméssion, Charles Demander, found the riding school too far
froen the centre of Bash 1o tempt enough custom and therefore soon removed his
businesa to the Peliean Inn, By 1786 Dash was also keoping the odd champion
racing sl ion mt the stables for covartng mares, ns alrendy mentioned ™, Active
promation of the Montpelior establishment wis becoming even more Impartant
as another riding scheol came Into prominence mearer the ity centre, in
Maonmouth Street loading into the Upper Bristal Road. Here a covered amphi.
thoastye was built and equipped with the fashionable Buzaglo stoves to encour-
age winter use apd @ permit displays of hoesemanship and cireus sots. From
1728 Ryle's Amphitheatre and Riding School, s it waa ealled, hostad regular
visits of equestrion teams froem Losdon and elsewhere, porticularly fram
Astley’s and Franklin'e, Pirework displays were another attraction, and in due
conprse pony races'.

Durirg the last docade of the century Dash faced competition on several
fronts as well s personal tragedy in the death of two of hix sons, ane of wham,
the 18-year-old William, was reputed alrendy among the best horsemen in the
ciantry. Ryle's riding schoal kept up its rivalry. In 1796 the laying-cut of a
brand-new, serpontine ride at Sydney Gardens stimulated the development of
atabling and other facilities in Bathwick. Horse noctions were now staged nt
several venues, though that did not deter Dnsh from trytng them again in 1796,
following & succossful sale of cavalry mounts bekmging to the Essex troop, and
on 6 weekly boasis in 1798, This latter attempt provoked him into a rare
expresaion of charmetor:

Fow pertons have greater experience in the Purchase and Sale of
Horses, than J. Dush — his Study, his Debight, and hia Livelihood
bave depended upon the trianing of that noble Animnl; and, he
conseqaently trusts, that he hassome judgement in the qualities and
nhillties of a good Horse ',

Thanks te his professicnnl roputation, honesty, and business acamen, the
riding achool was now floarishing, theugh the physical extent of his small
wntplve had both expanded and eontracted during his tonore, In 1788 he had
noquired on mortguge from Elizabeth Molesworth the whole tenmia ourd

. but then in 1796 Jost the use of all the ground to the east along
Montpeller, including n structure érected nt some date nlong the sast wall of the
riding schoal (fior s2ablesce coach-bouseT), other stabling, acottage, and perhaps
more sersoualy the chicf cutride, All this land belonged to Rivers Gay who now
rarted the freehold, for 3 consideration of £300, to the commitiee chavged with
building & Free Church' to serve the vastly increased numbers of the Waleot
poar. After three years of construction Christ Church, as it became known, was
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consecrated In Novamber 1 7589,

Riding continued to be coe of Bath's ‘comforts’, bowever, ns the dinries and
carteepondence of some of its visitors attest. Elizaboth Callett in 1792 was o
typical enthusinst, sallying forth mest days onto the Upper or Lower Briatol
reads, the Wells read, or the downs — thoee hills which an enrlier, less
determined visitor had found ‘so steep and woarisammse, that it requires no small
degroe of resolution to take that axerciin which the physeiane invariably
recommend®®. Townrds the ckee of the century, however, the delightful,
exhilarating, health-provoking outings on the ‘fine turf of Lanadowr’, as one
Well-Wisher to Bath’ phrased 1t, were under threat from a further bout of
enclosure™, Riding mnd couch excurssons on Claverten Down were being
restrictod about the s period.

Since the Montpebier riding school hud alwiys enjoyed the asset of proxim.
ity to Lansdown, this loss of access may have beon a contributory factar in
Bdward Dash's decialoa to sell in 1801, The previous yeur his father snnounced
that he was disposing of his famous chestnut gelding Cripple and, an aceount of
hia growing Infirmity, banding over the entite enterpries to Edword™. Whethor
by familyagreement or not, Edward Dush lost ne time in puttieg the tennis eourt
on the markot, pointing sut that it was cocd dored to be ‘me of the completaet...
in Europe, not unly by its improvements upon il other Courts, but_. [from ] its
edjeining the Riding House, and the conveniercns of different uxorcises for
heaith and amusemant’. In referenoes (o John Milton, Hothwny's successor, Dash
ndded that the ‘present occupieris by ne muansa good player, butu good marker;
vory assldoous to his buslnees and <fvil™™ Milton puid £40 rent out of his
nnnual tadking®,

Hardly was the eonveyance of the tennis coart seonpleted {in June 1802 to
the Hon, Charles Darssser ) than Bidwisrd Dash guve notice thist the riding school
was available for 1et™. [n fact it looks as thoagh the property was soan sold,
paasing into the honda of Willlam Stevenson, With that the eighteenth-century
story ended and the aflermath may be summarised beefly,

The Stovenean family kept the riding sehool going, unti] the 1840% in spite
of rivalry from o new institution in nearby Cottle's Lane run by J. Ennever, and
the Jong-standing competition from Moamouth Strectsuceansd vely orchastratod
by Bamued Rylss, J. Stokes, and 'that good-looking fellow’ Hippooa Mend, who
is represented in The Englisk Spy of 1826 us being surpmisingly froe with his
pupild Chrsatian names — set upright, Sslly; more forwnrd, Elizn; koop your
Tein-hand mare sguare, Ellen™**. By 1846 the Montpelior promises were in use
by aatable-keoper and daiyymuan, and some seven yours nter the building that
adjcined the old riding school on the esst wns converted into a Roman Cathbalic
chapal and later school. Returned w Anglicnn ownership this Jnter bocams an
annexe hull to Chriet Church, while the riding house, possibly somewhat
rebuilt, turned into the Rifle Yolanteer Drill Hall, Its original function was oot
whally forgotten though, for in this century it reverted to a viding schoal once
mare. Second World War bombing finaily saw to ita demolition.

Mazxnwhile the tannis court underwent its own transmutations. Although
still ‘respectably attended by the Javers of athietie sport’ as late a6 1 9087, t was
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not to last. Scon the nets, rackets, and playing costumes were removed, and all

the jargnn of hazard and chase, penthouse and dedans, wos forgotten. Late in
1816 the recently founded monitorial Girls' Froe School removed fraem Grove
Street and took up occupnticn in the Car more apacious Moantpelior butlding®,
Over the next decade and a half it wus Glled on weekdays with poor Wakoet
children under instruction in the rudiments of reading, plain-neodowark, and
hoasehold dutics. In the 1830%, after m short-lived attempt to revive it for
termie®!, jt becumo a malthouso, and then until the 1960° had a histery of
various industrial uses, Roynl tennis in Bath came to an end; but not in outlying
Weston, where a eourt was in exsstence at the Crown and Anchor tavern in
184849, When fresh talk of bringing tennis to Bath broke autin 1880, it was the
novelty of lawn tennis, an altegether simpler game, thot was under discussion.
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BATH INDUSTRIAL HERITAGE

CENTRE
Camden Works, Julian Road, Bath,
Tel. Bath 318348
Come and see the amazing Bowler Collection of
Victorian Working Bath, housed in a
Georgian Real Tennis Court.

Some working machinery
Free Guided Tours

February - November

Open Daily, 2.00 - 5.00 pm

December
Weekdays only, 2.00 - 500 pm
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THE LADIES ASSOCIATION
by T. Alexander-Maoquiban

But for the discovery of n bundle of papers in u box belonging tothe Davies-Cooke
famsily of Owston Hall near Doncaster, the exastence of the charitable werks of
Lady [sakella King in the early years of the 19¢h century sround the current
Avan area would have paseed unnoticed. This distant relative of the Ear] and
Countess of Kingston of whom Hetle hns been désarTves recognition
for her beroie efforts ot the beginning of the 19th century to establish a
Protestant Society for ladies of nobility and gentility. Indoed Scutbey, n
contemnporary of bers, did hold her up ax the “Clsra or Theresa of Protestant
England, labauring for the benefit of her sax” and Inuded this notable experi-
ment in communal Hving. This srticle soks to bring to o wider audsence the
endeavoars of Lady King to create a 'tconvent’ for the supporters of the rising
Evangelical Revival, especially theae who were disadvantaged — not from the
ranks of the poor, bt the more privileged members of society amangst whom she
mixed,

As varly 8s 1513, Lady King drew up o list of names of those who desired to
Jend their nid to n proposed plan of asscciution *amengst wormen of Independent
fortune for the puy pases of lessening the expense of living to thoss whose means
wre movee limited®, She aimed to provide n respectable home to young ladses “of
good family and fortune who have lost their parents” and to offer “cheap seylum
to the erphan daughters of gentlemen sspecially of those brave men who haye
fallen for their Country”. £6,000 wus needed to set up such ap inatitution, The
obviews place for 113 location was Bath, & centre for social aclivity in the South-
West, where, despite such affluence, Lady King found that "individuals relling
in wealth do often refuse to assiat thadr poor relations”. It was to thees distressed
waomunfolk that she intended tooffer o lifeline, Such wns her coonmitment to the
scheme that she invested many thousands of pounds of her ewn fortune to attain
har vision of & “Society of women — English Women — belonging to the Church
of England” who could come together tolive in pence, tocountar the trends of the
dany townrds n secalar and frreliglous lifestyle.

Funds wers slow at coming in, becnuse of the universal distress of the times
which made it dfficult to solici t contribnetiona even from the very rich. One can
imagine alea that many wore projudiced against such n scheme. Lady King hod
o counter much misunderstanding about the nature snd aims of the Institution
which gave the Bath Gossipe o field day, subjecting her to “extreme imperti-
nence”. Bome thought that it wos to be a very strict house whars pisty and
sobirluty weuld preclude any form of enjoyment. Lady King was anxdous to point
outin defence ef her scheme that there were no rules agaired visits to friends and
wxearsions into Bath or engagement in amusements of any sort but that ahe
desired to encourage “home occupations... condudw to resl happiness™ nnd not
merely to provide s base for yourg ladies to be introduced into Bath sociaty with
all its snares and temptations, nar te give an abode for youny ladies seeking
advancement in L% at the expense of their neighbours, It wae nn expertment in




communal living which needed enndidates "not ndverse to a retired 1ife™,
Deapite the opposition from some and the misunderstanding of others, her
scheme met with much approval and the Ladies Assoclation, as it came to be
known, wos founded in 1815 with an impreadve lat of sopporters — two
Duchisses, 0 Marchioness, four Countesses and o Viscountess, two Bishops, an
Ear] nad other nobility. The names en the Prospoctas did not howover always
mean that their subscriptions were paid regulardy or on time! Lady King
manoged toleasms a praperty at Bailbrook near Bath where she started to putinto
proctico the ideos she had for the running of her Inatitaticn. Shae had the
encouragement of Reginald Heber, lator to become Bishop of Calcutta, who
conmended the admittance of ladies of “persnanl merit” to further the aims of
the Aasaciation, She reesived royal patronage which gnve much status io her
wark, when in December 1817 Queen Charlotte visitod the Institutice and
called it n “biessed asylum™. Yot her interest too dropped off and hor subscrip-
tions remuined unpaid, Lady King was fortunate in securing the help of Sir
Baonjamin Hobhowse, son of o Bristed Merchant, who was an MP from 1797, Ax
Prexidentalthe Bathand West of England Socioty from 1503 10 1 81T he retained
a great interest in the affnirs of his notive aren, Inclading the welfare of Lady
King's experimintal schome, It wns chiefly he who helped her through the
difficulties of the early 15205 when Builbrook was put up for aade by its owner,
The Aseciation eoudd not afford to buy the property which was subsequently
sold to n West Indin merchant-gentleman. It had to look edsewhere for a house
in Chiftom, bought from the Rev. Charlea Gore for £3,500, £500 of which waa
provided by Lady King horsalf, She was the Lady President of the Associntion,
the head of the bousehold who was the puiding furce of the whole erganisation,
In 1823 thig éonalsted of Lady King and three Lady Renters or Guardions who
paid high yearly rents (or thele rooms @ give support to the Institution. Then
there were ten Lady Assecintes and four Amsisting Ladies on the endowed fund,
romprisng two invalids, the almoner and the secretary who gave sdministra-
tive help to Lady King. The early hope of providirg burssiries far the assistance
ofarphoned danghters of nobba fanulyes and ther educaton bad come to nought
because of the Iack of Gnancial contributions. The move to Bristel mesnt that the
close thes with the ladies of Buth society were weskened snd their subscriptions
less ensy to collect. Yot the lise of Patrans and Trustees, headed by the Bishop
of Durbam and Earl of Shaftesbury respectively, was still indientive of the
measure of support the Asscelxtion recelved fram some sections of the nobality.
Regrettably the affairs of the House wors not all sweetneas and pesce as the
Lady President in her ploty and naivety had hoped. In 1820 the Rules of the
Inatitution were changed and a new office ntroduced which Lady King later
judged to be “of no uae whatever and much mischief™. A Lady Superior, elected
by the inmates for “promating cheerfulness and uranimity, composing little
differencen and encouraging every good fecling and useful eccupation, kindly
advising her companions in privide ol anything that may ssem objectlenable in
their conduct an regards thelr Christian profession and the welfare of the
community” seems to have been o grave mstake for the unity < the house,
setting Lady Prosident and Inmates ot loggerheads. 5o o the rules on “dress
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andoppollation® whick laid down thad “no whisnsienl, shewey orexpreasive style
of drme” should be woen. This merely produced cabs] and party spiritand caused
ridicule in the House, Bven the rules about evening company, the names of
whies had to be notified to the Lady Presdent, bad (o be rescindod because of
the mischiel that arces. A fow of the young mem bers who came ssem to have been
|nfacted with hatred, envy and contermpe af their nelghbours, jealousies and
sadden intimsacks and other odious quallties which disturbed the fellowship,
Lady King looked back wistfully to the time at Ballbrook when the [nstitution
had boen i its hoppiest stads, when ladies did not visit vach other in their awn
bedreoms and there was na “intimacy formed merely foe the indulgence of idle
goxuip or foolish ogotinm™, The moral character and respectability of the
Institution was ssdly in dedine. In 1830 Lady King wrute to a Miss Willynms
whe had handed in ber notien of intention to quis Carnwallls Houes, She tried
to ammwer ber chnrges of the *quixotic search after usefulness” which boguiled
1ifo in the Institution, seing its purpose a8 “obltaining o quivt permanent and
independent house” She mgrettod that Mias Willyama had not found “a
Socicty.... of consistent snd self.denying Christinns®. May be it had not come up
to hor expoctations, but she still considered it n “particulurly suitable abode for
 sincere and humbly roligious charweter., net founded an mere worldly
prineiples, Though in the present busthing and ftineruting age few muy find is
1o their tnste, yet Ldo not despnir of seekng it again whot it was for a few years,
the valued nhode of such 35 can feed thankful fur providence for directirg their
steps to such o peaceful home™,

Cuupled with intarnal troubles, there were othor diffieulties. Sir Banjamin
Hobliowuso wrote to the Bishop of Salisbury, ooe of the Patrons, in 1828 about the
advisability ofuveiding the helding of n Genern) Meoting because they were such
cantentious oecssians. Thire was a declinein the numsbar of Patrons s some had
divd. Thore was a shortage of funds to further the work of the Assocsation by
appeenting & full time Superintendent, There was i very poor attendanes st
meetings of the Management Committee as nates againet n list of their names
indicated “Ones & tealoas friend”, “no intersdt In it", "has nover cared about it*.
There was an increasing air of pessimism about the affairs of the [natituticn
which twok their toll on the Lody Prosident. From 1823 onwards, Lady King
bacame disiliusionod and vesigned to the failure of hor grand scheme, She
wished 10 resign becouse her offices had become “so arduous”, sach were the
internnl dissensions and externnl desertions abe had to facs. Her health
declined, her spirits started to fail ber, she exproased bitterness that she would
have to leave the Institutian in which she had hoped to be until she died, Just
bocause of the *dsalfection nnd eabals of n few loss aminble inmntes”. Yetall her
closest frienda and sllies were adwancing in years, and ahe knew that the end
cotald 1ot be put of. The house wis pat up for sale but early hopes ofits purchase
Ty the Bishop of Gloocoster failed. It took five yonrs for Teane Cooke of Henbary
to wind up the affnirs of the Assciation, not least becauss of the difficolties of
deciding how to dispase of tho funds renlised on the sale of Cornwallis Houss
Bventually this wius sold in 1847 and it was determined that one third of the
reaidue of funds ahoold be allecnted to the purchase of the Bristal Carporation
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Livinga (o present “plous”, s Ewngelical, Clergymen to the parishes of St.
Phﬂlpnd.hwh.at.?wl St.James und Temple), and the remainder to the Rev.
William Caytes Wikson for the Clergy Duughters' School at Castarton. At the ead
of the yeo  ndy King wrote to Isane Cooke expressing ber delight that the
buginess wis now complots: “to have svery part of the funds dovoted to good
purposss is my earnest wish. Feoling myselfto be sonear the end of 1Hfe'a journey,
1 would fiin be rid of all worldly concerns®,

Lady King's preject failed just ns Southey had hinted in his report on the
Institution when he had written that it remains to be ween whether this
generation will have the honour of supparting it or the disgrace of sufforing it
1o fuil", Protestant monasticiem dic not take root in the too fectile ground of Bath
or Clifton. The ladies of fashionable society were not sufficiently pious to adhere
to the restraints of » community ms enviseged by Lady King. Nar ware her
friends sufficiently loyal to the high Ideals that she beld, In the end she gave
mmmdhllﬁmﬂmﬁo(hnmbhwm.fw-bﬂ%hd
no regrets at “undertaking the welfore and happiness of many estimable
persons”, avan at the riak of persoral discomfort. Though the Institation fhiled
in the st resort, other werthy enuses alang similar Hnes @6 thoes she boped to
establish were recipionts of her penerasity, Lady Anson, ene of the four to
mupport her to the end wrote in encouragement: “you my dear fiend, devoted the
la=z. years of your life and much of your substanes to « schome which in theory
held out a praspect of much permarsnt good and in the quality it actually did for
some yeors produce”,

Here was areal Protestant anint dedicatod to the cause of her fellow women,
their camfort and welfire in o Christinn community. Her labours are anly now

being recognised, nearly 150 years loter.
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BATH AND THE METHODISTS
by Bruce D. Crofts
Introduction

Mothedint infloencs was initislly encountered in Bath when John Wesley made
the first of his 100 visits in 1 738, To understand why be came we must turn to
Epwarth i Lincotnakire whiere John was boen 16 1703, He was the 15th of 19
children, of whom 8 died in infancy. His mother Sussnnah wos herself the 25th
child! Her influence was perhops greater than her husbands on ber talented
sons for she found time to give them all & primary education. They mastered
thely alphabet by their ith birthdays. Discipline wns such that they “feared the
rod and lenrmed to ery quiotly”.

John's fathor Samuel was the unpepular Rector; his polities and pointad
preaching wers both disiked. His partshionnes cot the legs ofT his dog, nnd twice
wet fire tn the house, When only 5, John was rescued from the burning building
in the nick of time; Inter he describod himself seripturadly as “a brand plucked
from the burning”, an early sign of Divine intentson.

John was undoubted)y elever and propared to work hurd. He reached Christ
Chwurely, Oxford at 17; five yoors later he wos ordained desscon, and three yesra
Lutor pricse, by Bighep Potter. He and his beother Charkes foemed u group of
friends dubbed “Methodizte”, »n quaint nane xasd to spply to an ancient school
of physicians who insisted on rogulor det and exercise; they woro slso known
w the “Holy Club” and “Biblé moths”. Herw the brothers met George Whitefeld
und fermed what Charles described as "the three-fold cord thut can pever be
broken®, In 1735, thelr father having died, the brothers st off to week in the
wolony of Georgin, Everything went wreng and they returned heme fed up to the
toeth. After being greatly influenced by the Moravians, and the writing of
Martin Luther, there cocyrred an 24th My 1735 the great turning pointin John
Wesloy's tfe. Scemewhint unwillingly he attended n servico in Londmn sand “felt
his henrt strangely warmed®, The foundation was lxid for the great evangelical
revival, deseribed by David Lioyd George ns the greatest religious mevement for
250 yoare. During the next half-contury Wesloy was destined to become the beat
known man in England; he was to travel 250,000 meles mannly on horseback and
presch oo 40,000 oscasions of whach 150 wore in Bath.

It was George Whitefield who introduced John to open-air preaching. The
former wae a vehemaont snd exeiting orator; John ehoaso to be calm, mensured
and logical. Small groups would continwe to meet after his preaching and so the
flrst Mothodist societies begnn to form. There was no attempt or desire to break
with the Church of England and meetings wers srrsnged not to clash with
Anglican services. Sometimes people reactad rather strangely o Wealey's direct
way of convinzing his hearers of their sinfulness; their groanings and even
ennvalsions could have sopmed quita frightening.

Bristol with all its influence and importance was destined to bacame the
Weoslay’s main contre for thirty yours. The meating place erectod in 1739 and
knawn today simply and with affection s “the New Room™ beeame the first
Meothedist chapal In the world Mathodista never considered themselves as




Dissentars but o be (n the safe side bod the bullding Heensed fur public worship
in 1748, an action dezcribed by Charles ns “needless, uselvasand svnsoless™ Tha
statue outasdo of John on horseback teils bow hve rode: bie i resding and the relns
wre Jose. So he would travel up 20 90 miles in a day, sometimes up o 20 hours
in the saddle, time ot to be wasted!

John Wesley and Bath

Wealey's dates are vory significant when we study the rise and fall of Georgian
Bath - 1703 to 1781. He wus therefore a contemporary of Richard Nash, Ralph
Allon and Johin Wood the Eldar. He survived them all.

John Wealey kept a dnily journnl — a masterpisce of Krglish literature ~20
volumes — T million words and from its pages we derive precise information
abeut his movements. Thus we know thal be first came Lo Bath on Apri 10th,
1788, Ho visited Bath more than anywhore else, npart from Loodon, Bristal and
Kingswood. 1t wis aleo the fitet pliacw after them for o Methedist Socety (o be
fisrmed and was therefore the first breakthrough in & natioo-wide mavemant,
And nn weshall see it wis con of the worat pessiblo places to choose, -ndun\mlly
the least succeasful,

AL 5.00pm ve that fateful du‘onamoadwnnhhmdo-mdwwwnn
that they could see us from Lady Cox's in the square plainly®, Wesley proached
£ 2,000 geople. Parhaps it was near the present entrance to Vietaria Park?
Queen Squnre had jisst beon built with ita new 70 foot abalisk in the contre, The
Clireus wsa yol Lo come.

We den't know which house Lady Cox lived In — she was the widow of Sir
Richard Cox of Dumbleton, Gles. and oo of Whitefield's exrly converts.

Afver a mend ot the Three Cups - which wos then in Northgate Stroet Wosloy
preached at 7.00pm in Grocious Street or Court, o Hethe alloy botween Waleot,
Stroot and Bread Sweet which contained 16 houses. Hardly room for o large
audience! Brood Streot Ploce in its nmme todiy.

Two wuaks later he preached to 1,000 in the meadow where “the ratn kept
the congregation small”, and later fram the windew of the houso of asilversmith,
Mr. Dibble. On May Sth he moved down-town to Mr. Marchnnt's Beld at the Hom
(both familiar namee in the Southgate - Manvers Stroot areas tedany ), Afortaight
Jater Wosloy was surprised thot his audience wos not only working snd artisan
class, far “there were soveral fine things smeng them”. No doobt they reported
baek to the King of Bath, for Wealey wns lnter tipped off to axpest treuble next
time he came. Indood he might be well ndvised o stay awny, for Beau Nash
intended to turn him out!

The dassic eonfrontation that occurred on thes June day = now enshirined
in our histary books. The turncut wos larger than over. The King of Bath

appoared, in his 60°%, and at the belght of his carcer.

"By what nuthority do you address thess people’™

mmc&mwmwwmhmpafmmwmuyw
on of honds.”

Nash painted cut that cpen-airmeetings were illegnl under the Conventicle
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Acts, Weslay comntered this by snying that thin only covered “seditioun” meet.
ings not religious nex.

“You fraghten people out of their wits*

3r,didyouew-rbmrnenmbﬁ'

No'.

“How cun you Judge of what you never hesmrd?*

*Slr, by common report.”

‘ProyaranywaJ.P aor the Mayer of this cty?™

*No, i nm not® replied Nagh

“Why than, slr, pray by vhnsnﬂmritydom sk me of theao things™

No reply. Wealey went on:

“Cive me Joave sir to agk. Inno your name Nash™

*Sir, my nnme b= Nash®,

“Why than, Sir, T trust common repart is no good evidence of trath, | dars
not Judgte Vou by eommon rogort.” After o pause Nash rocovered sufficimsly to
aay

*1 deatrw (o Krow what this peaple come hove for”

An old woman shouted *Yeu, Mr. Niush, tuke care of your body; we thkeenre
of our souln®

Without further words, Nash turned awny, Wesoy's journal records:

“We trmediately began praying for him and all the despisems.”

“As we returoed they hollowed and Yissed us alemg the streets. Ten ur
twalve fine Indies followed us into Hichard Marchant's house. Perceiving them
to be serioan [ xnid *1 do net sxpect the vich of thia weeld to haor me: for | apeak
plain truth, a thing ynu know fittle of and do not desire to know,”,

Hachard Murchant waa a well-to-do Quaker. 1o complained that peoslo
“dnmojed his trecs, sole things out of the ground, und upeet hia nelghbours®,
S Inter meetings wove held “at Jo Fenchams®. Wherover that was.

1t 3 somotimes sad thint Nash katar silonced Wesley by getting o bund of
musiciana to drown his voice. There in oo evidence ol this. However, Richnrd
Graves the Anglican Rector of Claverton, the friend of Ralph Allen, at2ockaod the
Mathodists, andin the *Spiritual Quixote” intreduces an ansedote which may or
many not ba faunded an (het. It tolls of an Ovator on the Parade whe was silenced
when Nash gave the ordor for hs cechestrn, sugmonted by Prench horns and
Kettladrums, to atrike ap “God save the King™,

1t is a foct, bowever, that when in 1761 Nsab lay dying, the little band of
Methodiatz gathersd to pray for hia recovery,

It is abrangs thot deepite constant visits by John Wesley himeelf, and his
brother Charles; and despite the foct that they bad a meeting place in Avon
Street in 1742, and buile themselves & larger placs in 1758, the Methedist ey
did it presperin Bath for some 30 yearn. In 1741 Wesley deacribed hin followers
thore as “solitary Christisas, scxrealy known to wach ether or prident Chrss-
tans, careful not w give offence”.

Why? Perhaps even the artieans frat whem Wasley drew most support,
ware affected by the ensy way of Tife; the building boemn and coostant Bow of rich
visitors must have ecinbled them to do very well —and thay were not looking for
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any revolutionary change in thelr style of Jife,

In October 1765 Wesley recordai *1 preachoed st Bath, Even here a fow nre
Joined togethor, nod hope they shail be scattered no more. I dined with some
serions persons in a inrge stately house standing on the brow of & delightful hill.
In this parndise twey live in ease, In bonoar, and in elegnnt abundsnce. And this
they enll retiring from the worid.” Does he reder to Prior Park? Was Ralph Allen
sufficiently aatute to have picked out a petential winnee at this stagein Wealey's
career?

John Wesley's affnirs with the oppoaite sex weve not suceesaful. When the
right girt came along he did not pop the question — and in the end he sstthed for
the wrong one. In 1751, at 48, he marred a widow with grown-up children. it was
nn anhappy banipes and eventanlly she left him, [f we were looking foe seandal
wa might seaze on the reference in s journal ton “Mra, W." with whom he stayed
in Bath (of course heoften used initink=in this way snd for no nefarious parpoes),
Ho tefls us that on 17th September 1 T4, be rode to Combe Grove, o hoass built
in o lurge grove on the side of & high, ataep WL It ts stil] there today ~ & hotel
now, uverleoking Monkton Combe. He says"1 found Mrs. W. the same stil] with
rogard to hor Hveliness but not hor wildaess —in thia she was much altorod It
wan good foe me (o be there,” He stayed the night, and came back on submquent
oMAROna.

Purthior yessarch revesls that four ywars warlior she hnd sent him several
relygions letters from London. And in 1760, o year before his visit to Combe
Grove, he says, aftar precchiog in Avan Street *T win pefrvshed by conversation
of onve come recently from Lamdon. How much preferable is herirregulor warmith
to the cald wisdons of them that despise hur? How gdadly would | be aa she is,
taking her wildness nod fervour toguther!™

And that is all. A search of the Bath Chromcle of 17634 for arrivals and
depurtures revesls only ore “Mes, W.* — s Mrs, Wright.

It was =oon after this that Selina, Countess of Hhmtingdon begun to make
hor inflsence felt, and cavsed a lot of confusdon on the Methodiet scene. It is
porticulsrdy approprints that we should conmder her just now when her chapel
in the Vinwyards ia undergaing radical change under 1t new owners the Bath
Provervotion Trust.

Lody Huntingdon first came ta Bath in 17349 with her husband, a friend of
Ralph Allen — & significant year us we have seen. Widowed in 1746 ahe retarmed
to Bath and chnmpsoned the cause of the Methodista. Bocause of the kind of
society she moved in, evers Nash sttended in her bouss when Whitefield her
cheplam spoke. Hio leg was wo mercileasly pulled afterwards that he never
witendod there again'

In 1765 she bailt her house and chapal in the Vinoyards. She persunded all
mannee of high ranking people to sttand and knter she was to build more chapels
in Bath and other centres of influence. She was both sincere in ber brand of

Christinnity and domineering towards the preachers,

Hernee Walpole, who stayed in 8t. Johe's Court, was somewhat nmuesad by
Wealoy's proachiog. He describas him ns “uloguent in parts® but “ss svidently an
actor as Garrick. Ho acted vory ugly enthusinsm.” Wealey however says in his
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journal of himself that he *fully delivered his soul® on this occasion.

In the recently pubiished letzars of the Rev, John Penrcse we read nn
amusing account of his vist to the Countess of Huntingden's Chapel in 1766
whire the peeacher was John Fletcher, He describes the bulding snd its
embellishments in considerable detail and goes on_>The Prayers were road
wery wall, 3 Hymna sung very awootly, and had there boen no presching nor
extampars prayer, the whole had been much to my satisfactsan. The preacher -
had a lank face like Wesley, and true Methodistical bair, s mimic of Whitefiedd,
and his manner theatrieal with much vebomence of voice and geature,”

Jobn Wesley hnd never heen such an ndmirer of the Courtess of Huntingdon
as sore of the othee preschers. Ho dhjoctad Lo her domineering manner, The
final rupture came in 1770. The Methodista rejected the narrow Calvimist view
{avoured by the Countess; they bellavad and stil] believe that God's salvatics is
for ull and not for the select fow,

The little group of Methodists still meeting i Avon Street must bave boen
& lictle bemzsod by sl the comings and goings st the Vineyards to which they
were not invited. They had their ups snd downs and in 1768 the membership foll
to 11. About thia time on one particular Sunday the appointed preacher failed
Lo turn uy; but there was o stranger in the congregation. He affered to speak.
Though not a preacher thia striking ex-anldior in rad cost amd with o patch aver
his eyo todd of his converaion at Bristol and of his decision to live and dis with
the Meothodist people. Hias nome was Coptoin Thomas Webb. He hnd fought with
General Wolfe at Quebec snd there Jost an eye and nearly his life. John Wesley
realised his potentind and loter sent him 1o America where he beeame one of the
founders of the Methedist chiarch tn the US. As an dld man he wies Jater toreturn
:::tyh to treat his gout. He lived in Charles Street nnd entertained John

By 1777 the time had come to build a bettor mesting ploce. Beveral
Influential besadurs, disiilussoned with the Countess, supportad the new venturs,
A site in Now King Street was purchased for the eroction of what was strictly
spenking a Proprivtary Chapel. John Wealey and ten other trastaes sach
wdvanced £100, They expected to draw 5% per annum on their investment. On
» cobd winter's day in 1777 Wedey laid the foundation stone, He tells that “the
wind was pareing cold; yat asseren sny of the congregation went away bofare the
sermon”. On 11th March 1779 Wesley oponed the building. The valy mention in
the lecal preas wis in the Bath Jeurnal which said “We nssure the pubilic that
the Rev. John Wesley will open King St. Chapel on Thuredsy next at 11 in the
forenoon.”, Perhaps Willlam ond Careline Herschel were watching thoss activi.
tion from their hooss opponite?

Scon after the chopel was broaght into ese thare aroes a glorm known as the
“MeNab controversy”, McNab n minister stationed in Bath was understandably
upset becouse Wesley invited an Anglican Clorgyman froe [reland to preach at
King Street during his stay in Bath, This an example of Weslay demenstrating
hia antocratic nature. Ho ingisted that he peraonally appointed the preachars,
MeNab was moved away from Bath and & few of the society resigned in protest,

About this time the Christopher Hatel was coming into prominence os &
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Mathodist centre. Wealey ofton stayed there. The landindy wos o Mrs. Baddon;
she renarmed and became Mra, Grunge. She "kopt ber house private on the
Sabtath and hor domesties were at liberty to attend public warship”. She was
certmnly to be fhund smongst the Avan Street congregation, and latar at King
Streer. The King Strest trustees used to meet there periodically and chmrged
refreshments oo the Trist Accountsl. The Avan Street bailding was sold in 1 752
for £50.

The membership of the society was now a henlthy rcessection of the
population inel uding tithed folk, & doctor of needicine and tradesman. One family
ahout whom n grent deal could be told wae the Shums from Germuny who wers
denlined to have tremendoos influence on the soctal His of Bath in the 19th
Ce ;

John Wealey's Inst visit to Bath canse on 6th September 1790, six manths
befare his death. A contemporury reporter raid: “His white locks were the only
sigrs of his declining life. His brow was smooth, his eyes piercing and hrilkisnt,
hin complesion ruddy and hia volce strang and clear,” Not bad for 871

And 5o the town described by the Wosieys nt ane time mn *Satan's throne”
nnd “That Sedam of onur land® finally came 2o terma with its eritics.

The Ninotoenth Contury

Aftar the glones of Geornan Beth hod passed into memory the eity becamn n
somewhat insignifleant place, an cedinary provinelal town to which the nation's
inflsential lesders no Jonger come. 1t oan be argued that the Methedist and
Evangelical revival “tranaformed the maral life of the community from sin to
phety™, others ciaim that the old city’s sconomic prosperity wis deatroyed by the
autlawing of the amusements of the wealthy! Middle-cinas residents certainly
nene Lo dominate the life of the city sven taking over the exdunive cluba.

The religious census of 1861 reveals that the Bath wrea bl one of the
ighest attendances 1o the country, It was estimnted thas at least 54% of 1t
population sttended al leant one service, cumporod with 33% over the country.
Church of England asconnted for 60%, Methodists 15%. In 1881 Bath had an
unofficial rvligious sttendanco comaaas. With & total poglotion virtually un-
changed there was n reduction of 4,000 atteodances compared with 30 years
snrdier. Interastingly the figures reveal that whereas 50% of the Anglican soats
wern "free”, the Methodists ullotted only S0, See the Appendix for details

The dominating influence in Victerinn Bath chureh Hife was “roapoctabll-
ity”. Servants emulnted their employers in sttending Divine Bervice [often in
the aftarnoana). There was a great deal of "do goodism”™, but it was not until the
Balvaticn Army nppeared in the 1880 that any sttempt was made, since the
days of the sarly Methodists, to take an enthusiastic and ali-embraring form of
Christianity to the really poor.

John Wesley had newwr mmtinded u break away fram the Anglicans, arl
indeod ho wis eventunlly treated with great respect by the clergy and invited to
Nl thelr pulpizs. But throughout the country Methodista were being repelled
from the Lovd's Table. So Wesdey ardained ministars for work in the USA and
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#0 Lt the peaple i the country could recive the sacraments. Before he died
Wesley ronliced that separation was inevitable, Then the organisation was
;tablldndfurmiad-pmdont nation-wide nnd eventually warld-wide Method.-

Meanwhile In Bath

By 1815 there was need for a second chapel in Bath, Walcot Chapel wan erected
on the site of six old houses an the London Read with 34 acve of lnnd extending
down 1o the river, which became o burial ground. The nrchitect was William
denkins fram Landen and the initial cost £5,500. Due to his Mothodiet sympa-
thivs, Jenking reduced his fee by 25%. The first evening service (in 1816) was
conducted by Rev. Jabez Bunting, destined to become one of the giants of
Methodiszm and four times its Pregidont.

The church accommodnted 1,200 and the hall below 300. Josoph Pearson,
the Sunday School pioneer bad opened n sehool in Parsonngs Lone in 1811, Hy
now moved it to Walcot A day-school opened at Walcot in 1835, The ‘Boys” and
'Girle' entranes [nscriptions are clearly visible today. 3

By 1829 the Wesleynns had 16 “chapels” in Bath and as mony in the'
surrcunding villages. Many were only houses. About this time the “Prim;
Muthodiats" began to break away from the Waslayans and enjoyed enthu :
out-door “mmp meetings”. Hore 18 & contemporary account from the Bath
Chreevicle of May | 528 R

“On Sunday Iast 0 numerons body of Methodisis had o comp g on
Combe: Down. Two waggons were placed for the preachers ineloding 3 femals
H the gosdneas of the singing had been in proportion to its loudness, it w
hove been excellent. After the sermon the Director commanded all to separs
into different lots — Camerton friends ta the left, Frome to the right, Colefurd
the front, Bath stay near the waggons, Each compeny then began sing
different tunes: thun kneeled to pray swaying and bawling as bend e they ¢
unti] bluck in the fnce and auffosed with porspiration, This continued uy
evening whan they separated.” .

They subsnquently set up their principal Bath chage] in Westgate
Ings, developing and enlarging the site hatween 1845 and 1866, By 1
had 4 chapela in thearon. Duw 10 the break -awny movoments the Wk
hod fallen to 12 by that date. .

The arigiral Wesluyan Chopel in New King Stroot, designm)
date 650 was proving to be too smunll; It was badly ventilated ani
bakehouse or aven. It was therefare decided to replace it by n ¢ns
bailding to seat 1,200. This was of Gathie stylo and designed by
It hnd many senta desgnod for the poor “their pews having nio do
apén ta rmevive Lhem™ The church opened in 1847 sad the firet oo
8. Jackson, Presadent of Conference, This church was destroved b
FI9SE The nite In now sccupied by Percy Baye’ Club. A mutmarinl |
the mguificance of the spot R

The “Wesloyon Reformers”. later to become the *Unitod Math
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Church™ bud wlwo broken away from the Wesleyane. By 1351 they had § chapels
in the Hath area, the principal coe being over a coach manufactory in Broad
Strect. In 1866 they occupied the chapel in Lower Boro' Walla which today
houses tha Blackett Press, for in 1607 they moved 0 a new chagel bullt in
Shalespoare Avenue.

n 1932 the various branches of Methodism were re-united to form the
Meothodiat Church

Kingswoed Sehool

This uecount woald not be camplote withoot same reference, nlbait briaef, 1o the
mest proninent of Buth's Methodist institutions.

The school, as its name reminds us, was initially opened at Kingswood, 3
miloe Grom the beart of Bristol in o conl-mining nrea where the Methodiat cause
wus porticularly strong. This was in 1748. Much of the initiol Gnance woa
grovided by & Mra. Gumbay of Bath and by the Countass of Huntingdon. It
fulfilled o long eotablished desire by John Wesley fo run o school which would
avadd wll the defocts of the axisting scheals,

Thece wna n steict regimer: no play nnd no holidays, The boarders (mninly
bays, but some girls among them) rose st 4. 00am, studied, worked in the garden,
attendod snrvices and eventaally wont 1o bed at 8,00pm, Initially the childeen
were of Wesley's principal friends. Later, when numbers fell, advertisements
wureuntered in the Bristal newspapers. As mare trvelling Mothedist preachaors
wire engaged it becume convenient for them to send their sons to Kingswood.

By 1844 the scheol's standards wore constdored eram ped and inndequate by
comparison with the newer public schools, James Wikson, the architect, advised
that the late Willinm Beckfurd's estate ot Buth was up for sale ond that n
suitahlo site could be had for £1 050. So the decision was takan to move to Bath.
Work startydin 1850, Junes Wilsun with all hisexperience of college design was
the architoct of the Tudar style buildings. They ceat £16,000, wire shaped hke
o lettor H', ballt of Cambs Down sooe and initially designed to secommodiste
130 boys. The school wus subsequently considerubly enlorged. By 1883 the 253
papils were all the sona of Wealayan dergymen; from 1923 layman’s soas and
recenitly daughters hove been admitted. Until 1921, when the War Memorial
chapel was built, the boys regularly attepded Sunday services in the Bath
Wesdeyan churches.

APPENDIX
Methodist Church Attendance 6th November 1881

within Bath city limits
1% Sittings Religious Attendance
Total | Unapp: | App- | Denominati Morning | Evening | Tosal
ropristed repristed
Methodists
Free
a0 i00 0 Tiops, Lower 122 120 M2
Borough Walls
Primitive
126 w0 ™ Claremont, ES a2 17
Smowhill
00 200 00 Westgete 3m 760 1000
Baildings '
Westgote Dubldings — 4 pm, 454. Spacinl Sorvices all day coodurted by the
Singing Plgrims
Wesleyan
200 o TEQ Nuw Eing Stroet hio LI 4
1002 M5 &7 Walcos, %0 319 1134
Clovedand Ploce
200 L 150 Dafford Street, | 8 |1%
Larkhall [
Dallird Stircot - 3 pm, 64 prosess
24 M - Milk Street 108 163
(Misslony
o i 5 Temperanco Hall, e 68 123
Widcembeo
00 200 Wortoman's Hall, " "
Holloway
3m 1,820 4,571 1,788 238 40es
N




The Bath Sunday Schools
Returns taken SUNDAY, the 4th December 1881
Teachors Childven
& Officinls & Young People
Male |Female | Total Male | Female | Total
WESLEYAN
20 20 a0 New King Stroet 15@ 103 52
15 12 0 Waloot 104 161 264
4 3 10 Hullowsy b “ GA
- - 6 Larkhall - 7
v 16 F2 ] Milk Stroet L2 h -142
1 A 1 Tompernoes Hall 1 0 B0
Primitive Methodist
n . 12 Cluremunt ah 42 g
10 7 17 | Wemgate Buililings ol " 122
United Mothodist
) 5 13 Hope o s T

A SHERIDAN DRAMA
by Hilda Murphy

1t wiw Jueky for Richard Brinsiey Sheridan that, sfter an undstinguished career
ot =chool (whers be wis deseribod 25 ‘the most Limpanetrable dunce’] the family
mowed to Bath, To be released into its pleasures ot the sge afnineteen and in the
haycay of ita alaganees in 1771 was paradise. Hove was the st and hers were the

ios where he would find the inspiration and the freedom to pour ont his
talent, inhorited fram generations of gifted writer ancestors. Richard wallowed
in the fun of the coffee houses and the drawing roama, the balls and the
sntaytainments, and picked up much af the dalogue far his delightful plays.
Bath wia alresecly a6 suecesaful aa a sehool for scandal that rscat of the residents
could have taken nn ‘A’ level in it, As the Sheridan charseter, Sarfoce, puts it:
“I'he licerses of inventian aame poaple tako is monstrous indeed®, and, with or
without a licenice, the whole of Bath went on inventing and reporting,

Of eoursa Richard must fiall in love, and of conrse it could not be stradght-
farward, That would be fir 100 dull, The young Sheridans warn frdendly with the
young Linleys, a fomily of mifted musicians. Elizabeth Linley was, nt sixteen, an
eutablishol besuty. Accaimml siee childhood as a singer, her viioe wis worth
£1,000 a year to the family. Thamss Moors wrote of her: “The young mmsid of Bath
appears 1o have Tor gentle comquests to an extent unparallellod in the
annals of beauty,* Richord did not fall for her, ua a dazon mun had alresdy done,
at first sight. When he did became serionsly interestod, he kept quict nbout it.
Good drumutistt st he wis, be would chome hia mament. And, in the meantime,
there was no paint getting killed in the rush.

Elizabeth had so many admirers, it must have boen a problem remembering
their name= The Linkey parents, howaver, had practical, Indeed, merossary
plans for Eliznbeth's future and gave their approval to a wealthy, middie.oged
ndmirwr, My, Loog. Bltzabeth, miserable, appenlod to Mr. Long ta end the
argagement, and seeing how unbmppy she was, he breke {6 off. Thers was her
perspcation - for it waa po courtship - by the unpleasant Coptain Mathews, and
poor Elizabeth, alrondy & target foe Both gossdp becanse of the broken engage-
snt, now found that her purnuit by Mathews wos being followed with avid
inteewst, Blizabeth confided in Richard and his sisters. Her parunts being so
anaympathetic, and the bandying ahoat of her privats life so intolerable, she
would go nway to France, seol refuge in a convent, and stay there until she came
of age. The fact that this mumicad-comedy plan had the approval of Jevel -headed
people wnxious for Bllizaboth's happiness shows how desperate her situation
was. To het father, murely a valunble amployee, taher mother, the girl hod faited
ta keso o wealthy suitor, Hlizaheth was very nenrly driven to suicide. It was
ngreed that she would disappesr to France, Richard taking hor there,

On the Inte evening of Wodseadmy, 18th March, 1772, Sheridan arrived
with o sedan chair ab the Linley’ home, 11, Royul Craseant. Quickly and quintly,
Mias Hliznbeth Linlay was spirited off to a waiting ¢haise on the Landon Rond.
From England, they erossed te Dunkirk. Peor Elizaboth was very seasick indeod
during the rough March crossing i & congo ship, Richard was deeply concerned.
Muny yesurs latur, when Elizabeth was sericusly ill, he recalled the journsy snd
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wrate: “§ than loved har so thut, had she died, a8 1 ones thaught sbe would, |
should have apsuredly have plunged with her bedy into the Grave,” When they
had landed and were on thelr way to Calais, Richard tald Elizaboeth of his
affoetions and heard that they wers returned. So, happily, instead of going to the
nuans, they went to the priest, and wore married. The osremony had no validity,
an the partners were Church of Ergland and minors, but it strengthenad their
perwonal band, The marriage was to remain a sscret,

In Bath, the whispering lehind fans was thunderous, The gossiping
vesehod fuver pitch. The scondal of Miss Linkey'a disnppearance with Mr.
Sheridan was n Waic far augerior to tho waters. Elizabeth's father arrived in
Prance and insstod on her returning to fulfl] highly-paid singing engagements.
The newly-weds went buek to their family homes, They rarely mol exceptin the
campany of others. *“When shall we luve ancther happy half hour? wrote
' . Elizabeth, "1 have not folt real oy since [ came fromn France *

The villain of the piece, Captain Mathews, hosd Lo be despatched, Duels
orswed; Mathews acknowledged defeat, and loft the country. Kichard won
everybody's approval, but he was seriously wounded and nearly died from loss
of blood. However, he rallied st up in beod, and waked for the papers. He jast
wanted to know, e aaid, whethor be was alive ar dead, On reading that he was
alive, he got up, callected Miss Lintey again, and marrsed her again. This was
o secret coremaony, but a glittering occssdon ollowed by a ball, rather as the
Sheridan prodogue snys...

“Victorious wreaths their Efforts justly clism
Whese prajes ia triumph and whose Smiles are Fame,”

: (who&:mn thmJounm” +
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CIVIL WAR AND ST. THOMAS A BECKET
by Connie Smith

Histary repeats iteelf in strunge and cursous ways. This happened recently st
Wideamhe old church oa the eouthers ade of Bath wheore the minister left, and,
unitil, u naw vicar arrived, his sont was kKept wanm by bay voluntsers, Pravioualy
something simikar ecelirrod In 1655 when William Baker, gentlemnan, took the
church services, The circumstances in which it happened were very different
from thoee of teday, but encugh records have survived to highlight the cireum-
stances ond give & portrait of 17th cuntury life during troublod times.

The amall building of St. Thomas & Becket livs within o leafy pastora)
sotting which comes os semuthing of a surpriso as it ie within amile of the contre
of the eity. Widcombe belies its name since the vadley ix very narrow and has
high-#ided slopos.In the hollow, like & hen with chicks, the church nesties smong
a seattor of age-old dwellings. The bamlet, s charming that it could have been
tuken i e Inspiration for n dreamy Cluude painting has sarned the reputation
af being amongat the best of Bath's beutiful onvirons, and ne woader,

It 15 the seclusion of its posticn which his load to the survival of fts late

8¢, Thowmas & Becket, Widcombe, Hath
Shetchad by O Sweith, Mareh 1585

Madieval arehitocsaral style when moss of Buth's other old ehurebes
10 be repdacod In nazsive Victarian Gothic, Greek, snd Byzantine
Thnb e nok 1o say that St Thomas & Backet escaped the improper,
han been sllered from Hme o tme (n ovder to matisfy the
requbrements of its congrogation. The hand of the 19th century resk
tnatance, was beavy, and | tthe remiing of its former late Perpondicular
Bethataa it may, its extornal attributes nee such that thay escily cu
disappointing fentures !

Todny the regular altendancs At seryious sbbs and Dows. This is dus In
to the limited population 1t serves and its innccessbility to the motorist and
public tranpport for the lane 1n which the hutlding utands is extremely narmow,
Novertheless, an average congregation of 50 ar # W mnintained, The seats
nunsber 80, 142 comtinuing problvma undoubtediy ste from its small catchmant
nrea, something from which it has suffecad for b very long time,

The butlding 13 (et the first to bo erectod upon the site. The surviving
Parochial Accounts for 1722-1832% contain n mwmerandumm that the ehureh
was findshed in 1502, having been bailt to repluce an older chopel. The walls of
tha earlier building were removed and thy stote wes ye-ased Lo aceom modate
the preaant budlding. It was dedicated to God in 1502, to the memery of St,
Thomnsa & Backet, No doulit the cerumany wiszooducted with solemn dignity by
the Fead of the Diccese in the presence of Prior William Byrd of Bath Priory.
Prior Byrd wis one of o long order of sceclestastion who held office in the
Penedictine Priory since feuda) duys, Thers bs somw deubie sa to whom sbonld be
given cradit for the budlding, Seme favaur Willians Byrd's predecessor, Sir John
Cantelow, bat he died in 1499 AD™ In o Grant of 88 Hen VITT(1546/7) the Books
uf the Court of Augmantaton show that a cothier of Bath wos vested with the
rectaria) tythes of Wideombe, which proved 1o be a borgain, whereby a prafitablo
soures of income wan secured for him ond his desosndants,

Hin nivmn was Bichord Chapman, an Alderman and ssmetime Mayor, who,
no dombk, served hin city in the fitting mannir of his day. AL the same time, baing
an nwtate faan of basness, o wosalert to capture any small picking tobe gained
in that anique Wpheaval which followed the Suppeesson of the Manasterios. He
latl nedther patranal interestin the chapol at Wideombe, nar the wellbeing of the
inhabitunts of the puriah (the Jordship rights went elsewbere). He sought no
pursanal grandicaity and the squirearchy, Being of 0 genurstion of woal mer-
chunts and browers, he was contont with his station, and so were hio progery.

On 2t st Navember 1 572 soveral of the churches i Bath™ were consolicited
intoa zingle parinh, under a Rector to be appotntod by Bath Corporation, [n cae
foll swoop the gilt of the Hving of St Mary Do Stadl with its appendant chapel
af 51, Themnas & Becket, Widenmbe, along with St Mary's within the North Gate,
and St. Michnel's within the weet, and St, James on the south-anst ramgart,
come under the control of the Mayor and City Aldermen. This move wns grantod
under Lettors Patent of Elizabeth [ although the schame waa held up unii) 1583
when Dr. Willlam Aubrey, Vicar Capitular and Administrator, was appointed.
Dath Carporat ‘“wmmm-'um the Unitying of cur Churchwe® - »
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Clearly the Wideombe'™ purkalsioosrs wers up in arms at the procecdings.
Ls1 the e of the churchgoers, the Charchwardens instituted legn) proceed-
ings, the result of which wan n sequestration of the living. The people aaw
TRichnrd Gaye of Lyncombe Farm, a local man, appainted toserve their church,
but to no avail. Bath Corporation oppossd the measnre and succeedod in
revoking the action. It signalled the start of a continuing wave of discantent
which was to ebb and flow for upwierda of three hundred years until the vienrate
was revived n 1855, The ferment was mused by dissatisfaction with the

cureof the church, In the eyes of the churchgoer s it was 2 running sove
of continunl pegloct Though history isshy of the lacts it scems that a house was
built to accommedate Richard Gaye the 16th century parsco. It was evidently
nover aed for its interided parpoes, but to this doy there is a venerable stone
house which ence went by the name of Parsansge House', [tssitn cun b verilied
by an 18th century mep of Bath™ One hundred vears earlier, in the mid-
seveniteonth ventury'™ o freestone masen, John Butler, rented the place fram
Walter Chapmun {Lay Impropriatee of the great tythes) at £48 per annum,

From the laginning, the parish was nover settiod with o villsge or villagos,
but racher with hamlets and Incisted faromteads. During feudal times, the
Pricry of Bath held the major part of the land and so it was hardly in the interest
of thot religious body to allow any barge community towstablish iteelf, This is the
meason why the 17th eontury Tithing of Widcombe bonstod no tecal squire of
lorgstanding, The panish was Targe compared with its neighbours. 18 prosgured
well with the elaven others in Bathtorum Hundred, lthough, after the Resto.
ration of the Manarchy in 16607, the decline of the dath industry atfactod the
whole nren.

The Hearth Tax Returrs of 1664/5 revenl that the standard of life was woll
obove paverty levels. There were two gentlemen Hated for Wideoenbe and
Lymenmbe parish; one of these wis a clothier, The rest of the inhabitants were
yramen farmers, busbondmen, weavers, masons, mnd others on the land or
warlang in servicing the city of Batl. The wellbeing of the panshiooers was
handied by churchwardens who were yooman furmors, plus & couple of mill
bolders aod clothiors. (Another couple of centurive was to elapse before Bath
absarbed the pariah]), The city wis s yob n smnd] place lurgoly contained within
its wolls, nport from the small overflows to the east and wast. Widely knowr for
i modict nal tharmnl springs, visilers came to "take the cure”, but its expansion
into a fushionable pleasure resort eccurved later.

Threughout the country the early yours of the 1 7th century were fraught
with complaints frem all sections of the people againat the heavy taxation “by
new and Invented wiays" ™ which alladed to the =hip mooey and subsidies
impoeed by the Crown. The high-handed sctions of the Church cused small
fastorings which continually vpsel congregutions.

Under the Elizabethan Act of Uniformity all persons were expected to
attend divine servics every Sunday (there was a penalty for not so doing), and
also to receive the sacrement three times & year ®, Streas was laid upon the
impartansa of sermons, for the pulpit wis the only means by which the prople
could be enlightened™™ Literature was practically non-existent and the news-
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paper and political discussions in large groups had 3wt to be invented. A
detericeating situstion in Widcombe hod ocourred which cvused genuine griov-
anee and complaint, but this shall be scen Inter.

In the countey at Jarge the real issues were the high taxes, the averbearing
policies of the Crawn, and the mishandling of Chureh matters. At last, in 1642,
tha flood gates burst open. The Civil War started ond the true foelings of the
people were revealed, With the tidal wave of Puritanism the BEstablished Chuarch
waa swuptaway. The ruling powees of the Bishops was abalished. In 1643 came
the Presyterian systom with ita new Directory of Warship. It veplacod the
Anghican Prayer Book which o mindster wis expectod to rend in church before
the merning mrvice. (He could be penalised far non-compliance )™ All Coen-
mon Books of Prayar ware to be oollocted by the ehurehwardens and constablea
and digposed of John Evelyn, the diorist, condemned the unrecognisablo ehuarch
seTvices - the prayers were *Inspld, todious and unmathedical” and intoned “in
an ?md and mysterious mosner.., ke the gibberish of beggors and vaga-
w -

At the outset, the clurieal purge In Samersel swept awny 100 or so Hoyalist
clongymen, and oll emoluments were withdruwn, Eventually ministers sl
oiders were formud [nto “Classes” W adminksor the Presbytarinn system, but it
never really Bourished in the county. Bath shows that loynltios were divided"™.
John Masters, Rector of the combined partabea, rotained his office until the end
of the War in 1646, (He rogained the position upon the Restoration of the
Monnrchy in 1660), Sharing the Abbey palpit from 1747 to the end of the
Intarregnum were Minister George Long with his assstonts, ond, lntterly,
Minister Willinm Green. Nicknamed *High Priest of Bath™ Geerge Lang s official
tithe was "Ministor of God and Weed®. He was ane of the faw [ndependents whe
Jedd & diving in the County and Me appaintment by the Corporntion was ratificd
by the Parliamentary Committoe for Plundored Minloters®9 It was an ex-
tremely difficult and e cial relo for te young and inexperienced Combridge
graduate. Ho wos oniy fwenty oors of age when be took over. The godly
reformation which the paritan desgy was required to perform wis austere and
arderly. 1t proved to be oo rigid in operntian, for there was still a wides prend
need to pursue traditional recreations. These stemmed from the sessonal cycle
af natare and they bad been niinforoed by mecretions of community ritunl and
also by ties of paternalism. Christenings and marvioges, for example, wern
attended by feasta and gatheringa The new regime fockade doncing and games
on Sundoy. Maypoles entirely disappoared.”™ Finally, by Parliasnentary do-
cron, Christoons Day woa appointed as 1 Natsonal Fast. Plum Poddings and
fesesting were vetoed, though no doubt with fittle siccess, anditisgenerally held
that puritans were uttarly insdncers,

Thu New Ordnnnce ordered births, marringes, and buriels to be registered
before an appainted eivilian who took the title of “I'he Rogirter™. Accordingly
Edward Sheepnrd in October 165359 was electod, nppainted, and swaen ts cover
the parishen of St. Poter and St. Paul, Bt.Mlchnol St Jumes in the city and the
pecriah of Widesnte and Lynocenbe nenr Bath. Since 1643, marriages were not
solemnisod 0 elitreh but befora the Mayvr, or Justice of the Puses, "™ which is
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guid to bave cavesd mueh dizcontant throughous the whole of Bath, Perhnge it
in o0 thin meoount that George Long, the Minister, was not averee to tempering
tho mornl code of the Puritan Government® and would bagtise a child, or, i be
wies “not ut home” then Widcomibe parishioners individually could spproach
Samuel Gwynne (somedime the oedained curate) and pay him 1s, 0d for his
trouhle. It is unrecorded how often these came mhous, but it does instarce how
difficult 1t was o auppress the llturgy. A leoghole oxisted, for if & baptism ok
place quiotly nt home who was any the wiser? A burial service was more
cumplicated since the interment took place in a public place, but s it hapgenad
at night then it could nleo be arranged guledy. % The Bath Abbey baptismal
reglatar fram Sept 26, 1653 to Oct 14, 1660, shows that cut of 100 entries, four
were maried “Baptisme”™. The reet were ontérod as "Born”. George Long's san,
Timothy, was baptised on 14th Octaber 1660 which coincidos with the date when
the Puritan Ovdor was rescinded; it shows oaly too clearly in which way his
inclinations Jonned!

The \ndignities impeand an the inhabitants of Widcembe nnd Lyncombe
parish by the Civil Wir hod coused them 1o smart and the continulng demunds
rubibed salt into places nlready tender. It was not unnaturnl that protests cams
from taxpayers over the oot of regairing the roads. The wear and tear upon
thoecughfares wore normally borne by the parish in necordance with the nneiont
legisdation of Elizabeth 1, but the enormous additional usage on oecount of the
War had been great, and more especially s s Uiree eajor haghways from
Bristol, Salisbury, and Walls, pased through tho parish. A petitian ta the
County Assize in March 16846 plesdod that "the wiys ware grown ruinous”, and
the inhabitanta, being fer the meat part poar, were unable to repair them
withoat help from the sity of Bath. The ameunt asked was £200 nnd the Mayor
was npproached for a contribution. No minute in the Counet] Book, or uny item
appearing n the Chamberlain’s Accounts, ™ throws light upon whal coctirrad,
but, 5 yonrs lator, in 1651, Robert Bush, the Surveyor of the Highways,
com plained to the Justices that the people refused to pay for the “re-pmving aod
removing of nuisances”, In the event, rulMod fuathers wers smoothed by same
unknown hand, the repairs were carried out, and the matter was settled et of
court’®. Hogefully, the Parish Constabiles ware equally successful after they
complained to the Qunrter Bessions in 164350 whea the inhabitants were
behind in thelr “bospital &nd maimed soldiers monays™.

The refusal of four Widcombe taxpnyers Lo moot their tthe cbligations had
rupureusaions upon Minkstor George Long (people called him “Hector™), He was
entitled to receive the small tithes, The Lay Impropriatar, Walter Chapman,
collectod the great tithes™; ho was & man with whom the inhabitants were 10
sympathy and harboured no grudge. In fact, in the opinion of some, he was the
meank of geezting a regular priest whan Rector Long’s term was at an and,

The small tithes had been paid by way of compasition fur about thirty years.
However, thase without the money coald pay in king, which usually consisted
of weol, hay, and apples. The hay was mnde into graes cocka in the fleld (nearly
the whole of the parish was enclased) and the tithe cockn were marked with
boughs, When the crop was ready & messsge was sent to the Rector who then
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Exchequor, or which o dradt of the depositinns.on behalfof the plainaff survives.
It is doted 9th Apeil 1656, George Lang’s plea was not elaar cut for e was st n
logs to know what were the individual itemws of tithe. The depasitions wore taken
fram many peoplo in arder to darfy the gituation. There wos sither a clever
tonepitacy sbroad or folks had remarkably short and confused mesories as to
what wes normally due from ench orchuurd, moadow, or fleld, The sum nt issus
was £19, 0w 24 Samuel Gwynne, sometime curnte, said that during his term of
office be had pever been paid any tithes, but ho had recoived £5, 08, 04 or
theroabouts, which was ayressblo to & compoaition of £19, (= 2d previously
made butweon the parishionersand some former vicars of Bath. In answor tothe
setquestions the ex officto Roctor, Jomes Masters, wis undarotandably évasve.
He could mot temember what he had recsived as he had bost his notes and
papers.He did, however concede that small tithes of woal, hay, and spples, plus
a compeaithon for the reet had been paid by pnm)mncrs to former rectors.

Qurates werw appointed by the Rector and pnid by him ot of church
fards?", They cume and wont |0 regular succision “laving n vsent church
with cnly o csual sermon preached cocnmionnlly”. Such had been the situntion
fram the start of Gevrge Lang's ministry. This shows th pattrn:

1647 Vaocant part 16562 Samw) Gwynme
part 1648 ﬁmnSp(nks 1663 N \4
1645 e 1654 Vacant
purt 1650 » » 1666 William Bakor
(never erdained)

1651 Vacont 1656 Willinm Baker

Williznt Baker, the younger, sge 30, entlemuun, soid he bad called ot St.
Thomas n Becket church sometimes during 1604 in the middie of the day when
lbe!wuhmvnmnundddwnm with u bible reading. He explained his
dutles upon taking over in 1656 as and expounding the seriptures
publicly overy Lard's Dayo in the parish chureh of Wideambe aforesaid and
cattochizizg there ns often ns noy of the Parishioners’ children wire presont®,
He never preached, wnd My, Lang, or his Assistance Misistor, Mr. William
CGreon, had preached two or thrwe thimes only. Mr, Long bad never ndministered
the sscrement. He hivl never besrd of any parishioners hiring = minister for
chrstonings e burials of the dead,

ﬂwdqonbmnhﬂwthd fundamental change to the traditional puttern
of ¢harch going was obyjocted to, but there wees no hint of direct grievance ngninst
the abolishrsent of the Episcopacy,

Certun parts of the yery large and unwielly parish were completaly
nuglectud (1t covared mest of the city and continued soathwards beyond the
Avanl. Widcombe poople were eager to paint oat how much more regularchurch
nervicss hind been within living memocy - “before Mr. Long’s time the parishion-
ers had prayers overy Loed's daie and twice & woel basides and the Sacrument
at Baster, und Sermeona svary quartsr or therenbouss”, The il feeling against
Minister George Long wits motivated from u gradge against his lack of parsann)
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CONSTITUENT SOCIETIES
HISTORY OF BATH RESEARCH GROUP

‘Roosun city’, Bath advertises itaelf, ar more obvieasly ‘Georgian eity’. In the
Roman Baths Museusn (the second most profitable tourist attraction in the
comntry) and the 18th-cantury architectural set-pieces like the Gircus and Royal
Creseent the sense of the paat is steany even 1o crsaal vigltors, All through the
year dorens of volunteer guides can be seen conducting grvups of tourists round
the sights. Any public Jecture on the city & likely 1o attract a lurgo nadience of
dedicated Bathondans So it was perbops odd that until 1988 there wik no Jocal
histery society ns such; though ence the Ides ofhaving one was meoted it turned
out that a variety of peaple were in fact dolng sursous docal researeh more ar less
inisalation. Perhioga the most viduable function of the Group hus been o bring
them together and develop o feeling of o Jolnt historleal entorprise.

To decourage merely spectator members fram ining, the woed ‘rosanch”
was put into the title und the eonstituthon drafted to make the Group ‘open to
indaviduals nctivoly engaged in rescorch an Bath history, or professionally
concerned with ita historical or archoeologieal documentation, or otherwise
knowledgeable on tho subject” Thin wos o wise move, Not all sur 70-80 members
are warking currently on loeal toples, but they are aware thit some contribution
i ananer or kuter hoped for. This may be in the lhem of & rosearch paper dolivered
o and then discunmd by members at the monthly meetinge. Severnl vistting
apenkers nre aloo invited ench weson, The seninar and panel fovmats are alse
being triod, ond we have on annual meeting of & more social charoeter.

The Group's historics] aims nre sersous, Too much writing aboat Bath haw
bwan predictably parechinl, antiquarion, anecdotal, lacking histoneal grasp and
innocent of brvader eontexts nnd theory. At the same time there wre encemous
gps in knowledge, even for the much written-about 18th contury where o fow
glamorous topies and vivid personalities bave urnrpoed moet of the atlantion,
The ultimnse wim of the Group must be o encourage investigation on n broad
frontand ot a professional level - though by o prodominantly ‘mmutour historinn'
membership, Alvesdy we have socured a small financial grant from the local
wutharity to start o vecord of source materlals foe Hath history in reguonal
reposi ries. Soviml membors continue to work on o longstanding propect pre-
dating the foemation of the Groug, b the Survey of Old Bath, concerned with the
documenting and mapping of the pre-Geongion ity expocially from the neh
holdings of kesws in the Bath Recard Office, This wark is olready proving a rich
source for Stuart Bath and hows lately been sssisting the RCHME Ordnance
Survey which expecta to puldish two histarical Bath maps in 1989, The Group
itanlf produces a regular newsletter for members but hag been anved the effort
of starting o joarnnl proper by the existence of other local outlets, including a
wolatively new commercial ventire, Bath Histary, whose second volume ap-
peored in May 1988 and to which sarse Group members have already contrib-
utad. As we become better-known we altruet more ressarch eexquiries, and as our
membership nnd contacts grow we find a surprisingly wide range af loeal
knowledge and expertiae to call on. Cartainly the Group was needed.

Trevor Faweett
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BRISTOL AND AVON ARCHAEOLOGY

The Pully llustrated Journal of the Brustol and Avon
Archasalagical Society

[ex Bristel & Aven Archaeological Research Group)
Conteats of Volume 6 (1081) ; (Price 250
The Losver Bristal Avoe 05 & Thorosghfare from Prefustenc Times so the Norman
Comquesl LY, Griasell
Dolebury Fiitlfors und Doledury Warrew €. & N, Holliorake
Evoavations of Loser Court Farm, Long Ashton RH. Looch & T, Praron
Excuvations af Sloke Gifford, 18841585 - A sumemary  JR. Rusewll
Wohr Strochey FRS - Seldioack by an earfy Antiguary ix Sourk Apen
RGA Williams
19¢h Century Pipes by Jovaihon Moul of Brisral | Beckey & R Jackasn
Aveey Archaeofogy 985 R Tles & H, White

Vm iv('pke E200) and Voloines 3 aad 4 (price BL00 cahl ore slw I\i“‘
wvailablo, Valusese 6 {for L907) is dus for peblicatiss in Septomber 1968

The a¥ove DAAS publicotions nre svailable from the Hom, Secretary, BAAS, b
Dept. of Field Archsecligy, Bristel City Museum, Queens Road, Bristol B58 1RL
Cdd 50p 1o yeurr orde e ta covor postape & pocking), They can nlso be gorodwsed from
1he City Museum Sheg.
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